
Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 1 of 12 

Town of Duluth 

Planning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

May 23, 2024 

 

The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Vice Chair Blane Tetreault.  

In attendance: Blane Tetreault, Pam West, Justin Osadjan, Tony Mancuso, Nate Nesgoda, and Dave Meyer. 

Absent: Angela Wilson. 

Also attending: Liz Strohmayer, Planning Director, Beth Mullan, Secretary, and ArMand Nelson, Town Board 

liaison to the Planning Commission.  

The agenda was approved as presented. 

Sievert Variance Public Hearing 

Liz introduced the hearing and the process.  Julie and Butch Sievert were present.  They were applying for the 

following variances to build a home at 5842 North Shore Drive: 

• A 14 ft variance from the required 110 ft setback from the road to place the building 96 ft from North 

Shore Dr, 

• A 5 ft variance from the required 20 ft setback from the side yard lot line to place the building 15 ft from 

the side yard, and  

• A 65 ft variance from the required 110 ft setback from Lake Superior to place the building 35 ft from the 

Lake. 

The property is in zone district SUR-2 and consists of two nonconforming parcels that when put together are 

conforming in lot size and width.  The proposed home site meets the dimensional requirements except for those 

for which a variance is requested.   

Liz showed the area map, the zoning maps, and a closeup site photo.  There is a cabin on the lot that will be taken 

down.  She showed the proposed location for the home.  She showed an aerial photo of the lot that included the 

DNR’s determination of the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) and measurements of the depth of the property 

from the OHWM to the road centerline at different locations on the property. 

Liz showed the criteria that must be met for approval of a variance and the applicants’ responses to those criteria 

as stated in their application.  

Is the proposal in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the Ordinance and consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan? 

Applicant’s response:   

 



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 2 of 12 

 

"Practical difficulties," as used in connection with the granting of a variance, means that 

a. The property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 

ordinance; 

b. The plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the property 

owner; 

c. The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.  Economic considerations 

alone do not constitute practical difficulties. 

Applicant’s response:   

 
Is the proposed variance a use that is allowed under the Zoning Ordinance? 

Applicant’s response:  Yes 

Julie said that she was born in Duluth and grew up on the North Shore.  Her dad and grandfather were fishermen 

off Stoney Point.  She and Butch bought this property in 1999.  In the meantime, they operated the Inn on Gitchi 

Gumee for 36 years.  It has always been their dream to build on this property.   

 



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 3 of 12 

Butch added that they worked hard to get to this day.  It wasn’t always easy to pay the property taxes but they 

managed.  They sold the Inn and are now financially able to build on the property.  The cabin was occupied until 

recently.  They did not charge rent for it until recently when rising property taxes made them charge half rent.   

Tony asked if the cabin could be rebuilt or improved. 

Butch said that it’s falling down.  It has had some remodeling, but he didn’t think it was rebuildable. 

Liz added that the cabin is in really rough shape and is extremely close to the lake.  It’s dangerous to be on the 

lake side of the cabin.  Nate had visited the site and agreed.   

Justin asked about the dimensions of the cabin.  Butch said that it was 32 by 22 sq ft. 

Nate said that he saw that the property was transferred in 2011.  Was that a purchase or a consolidation?  Julie said 

that they previously had a contract for deed on the property and got a loan for it in 2011. 

Justin asked if the property is in the erosion hazard area.  In the letter from the DNR, it says that it is “mapped as 

having low erosion.”    

Liz said that on the Town’s zoning map, it is in the erosion hazard area, but it is actually in a small area of ledge 

rock.  The Town has adopted a larger view of the map. 

Pam asked if they included the smaller lot when they determined setbacks and other calculations.  Butch said they 

did.  There is a home on the adjacent lot towards Two Harbors and they want to be as far away from that as 

possible.  The driveway was put in when the sewer was put in and they didn’t have any say on its location.   

Liz said that they would not be able to legally split the two parcels, even if they adjusted the lot lines, because it is 

not possible to create two legal parcels from that piece of land. 

Dave asked if they have been working with the DNR.  Butch said that they hadn’t.  Dave said that per the letter 

from the DNR, the DNR recommends denying the variances.  The setback from the lake seems to be their biggest 

concern.  It is not a very deep lot.   

Nate said that the proposed setback from the lake is actually closer to 17 ft from the OHWM as the DNR 

delineated it.   

Tony asked if they had considered moving the home site closer to the road.  Doing so would require more of a 

variance from the road but less of a variance from the lake.  Butch said that they didn’t want to be closer to the 

road because of the road noise.  Their proposed site is 25 ft above the water level.   

Pam said that she was concerned with being so close to the lake.  Setbacks from the lake are meant to keep 

buildings and sediments associated with buildings from washing into the lake.  Butch said that there will be much 

less runoff with a home that is landscaped and taken care of.  Currently if it rains, it washes out.  If they build 

there, that won’t happen anymore.  They’ve had the property for over 30 years and the lake has never threatened 

the cabin. 

Tony said that when the Planning Commission makes decisions a precedent of sorts is set.  People point to other 

homes that are 35 ft from the lake as consistent with the neighborhood.  He is not sure it is justified to be 35 ft 

from the lake just to be further away from the road.  But it’s a nonconforming lot and each nonconforming lot is 

different.   



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 4 of 12 

Butch said that they would be willing to move the house closer to the highway, but they would prefer not to.   

Justin asked if there was anything on the adjacent lot towards Duluth as their home would be 15 ft from that lot.  

Liz said that there is a house on the lot.  Julie and Butch said that it’s an old cabin that is not used anymore.  

Windows are missing. 

Liz read a letter to the Commission from the DNR recommending denial of the variances (see attached). 

Public Testimony 

Beth read a letter against the proposal from neighboring property owner, Rebecca Norine (see attached). 

There was no one present to comment.   

End of Public Testimony 

Julie said that when the Billes’ built their house, they were granted variances to do so.  They were taken to the 

Minnesota Supreme Court over those variances by Rebecca Norine and others.  Mr Bille has since died and Mrs 

Bille has been stuck with the legal fees.  It was very difficult for her. 

Butch said that their home won’t be as tall at the Billes’ home.  They were in favor of allowing the variances that 

allowed the Billes to build there.  They have paid taxes for over 30 years.  To have someone complain who won’t 

even be able to see their home doesn’t make sense to him.  It is all rotten scrub down to the lake.  They will keep 

the cedar trees.  They are willing to move the home closer to the road but don’t want to. 

Tony noted that it’s all bedrock, so there won’t be erosion.  But it would be better if the home were more centered 

and closer to the road.  He would like to see them be able to follow their dream.  It’s a difficult lot.  But the home 

needs to be further from the lake.   

Liz showed the location the DNR proposed.  Nate asked how close it would be to the road in that location.  Liz 

said it looked like about 55 ft.   

Butch noted that the closer you get to the highway, the steeper the driveway becomes.  They would also have to 

cut some cedars if they went further up. 

Justin asked about the reference to a separate garage in the letter from the DNR.  Butch said that the garage is 

attached; there is no separate garage. 

Liz said they could gain some room by placing the home closer to the center of the two lots.  Butch said they want 

to be as far away from the other house as possible.   

Justin asked if they would be willing to split the difference between what the DNR suggested and what they have 

requested.  Butch said he doesn’t want to build the home 40 ft further back.  He would be willing to move it back 

20 ft.   

Liz showed a rendering of the house.   

The Sieverts said the house was going to be a single level except for a small section that would be two stories 

with a shed roof and solar panels.   



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 5 of 12 

The Commission asked if they could only look at the variances as requested or if different variances could be 

considered.  Blane said that there have been instances where the Commission has had applicants return with an 

amended request.  Liz said that the Commission can consider variances other than what was initially proposed.    

Tony asked how many feet they would have to move the house to be behind the DNR’s shore impact zone.  Liz 

said about 20 ft.   

Nate asked if it would be setting a precedent to do that.  Is it what we want as a Township?  It’s not the only 

nonconforming lot in the area.   

Butch said when they put the sewer in they had no idea there would be a problem with building on the lot.  Nate 

said that it is the responsibility of the purchaser to know the zoning rules before buying a property.  

Dave said that the Commission looks at each case individually and lots are not identical in how they are 

nonconforming.  He hoped that a compromise could be found.   

Liz said that if the house were shifted 20 feet back to be behind the shore impact zone, it would be about 76 ft 

from the road and about 55 ft from the lake.   

Dave asked the Sieverts if that would work for them.  Butch said absolutely. 

Liz said that the DNR requested some conditions if the variances were approved.  1) That the footprint of the 

existing cabin be replanted with native vegetation, that the home be screened from Lake Superior by vegetation, 

and that the required vegetation be maintained.  2) That all runoff from impervious surfaces be directed away 

from the lake with a rain garden or BMPs.  In reference to a third condition regarding rehabilitation of old septic 

systems, Liz asked if the Sieverts were aware of any old systems on the site.  They said no, a chemical outhouse 

was used by the last inhabitant.   

Dave noted that this property slopes all one way to the lake.  There are not many options to send stormwater 

another way.   

Liz said that in this case, the best BMP would probably be a rain garden.  A rain garden collects the water and 

allows it to drain slowly.  It captures sediment in stormwater before it reaches the lake.   

Tony asked the Sieverts if those requirements were okay with them.  They said they were.   

Tony moved to approve the variance requests for the home as proposed by the DNR, the road setback at 76 ft, and 

the lake setback at 55 ft, and the 5 ft setback for the side yard as applied for.  The revised setback from the lake 

moves the house out of the shore impact zone.  The existing cabin site must be revegetated with natural plantings 

and runoff must be directed away from the lake with best management practices.  

Blane seconded. 

Tony moved to split the question.  Dave seconded.  The motion to split the question was approved unanimously.   

Tony moved that the proposal is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the Ordinance because it is a 

nonconforming lot of record and it meets the DNR’s request to site it out of the sensitive shore area; it revegetates 

the cabin site and addresses stormwater.  Dave seconded.   

The motion passed with Tony, Dave, Nate, and Blane voting in favor and Justin and Pam voting against.   



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 6 of 12 

Tony moved that the proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan because the shoreline is zoned for 

smaller parcels in close proximity so it doesn’t alter the fabric of the neighborhood.  It is consistent with the 

shoreline use as it currently exists and is zoned for.  Dave seconded.   

The motion failed with Tony and Dave voting in favor and Nate, Blane, Justin and Pam voting against.   

Tony moved that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the 

zoning ordinance because it has been used with a cabin for over 25 years, the limitations of the property make 

variances necessary to use the property, and it is similar to other properties in that area.  Justin seconded.   

Justin made an amendment to the motion that the lot sizes in this area make variances necessary.  Blane seconded.   

The motion, including the amendment passed unanimously.   

Pam moved that the plight of the property owner is due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the 

property owner because the lot is nonconforming and they have to conform to the nonconforming lot to build on 

the property.  Justin seconded.   

The motion passed with Tony, Dave, Blane, Justin, and Pam voting in favor and Nate voting against.   

Tony moved that the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality because many of the 

lots on the shoreline in that area are small and many have structures that do not meet current setbacks.   Dave 

seconded.   

The motion failed due to lack of majority, with Tony, Dave, and Nate voting in favor and Justin, Pam and Blane 

voting against.   

The original motion failed because two of the necessary criteria were not approved.   

Justin said that his vote on the second criteria might change if the house were slightly smaller and was a single 

story.  He feels like homes on shore should be replaced with similarly sized homes. 

Liz told the Sieverts that if they wished to appeal, it had to be within 15 days.  An appeal of a Planning 

Commission decision goes to the Town Board.  They could also reconfigure their plans and apply for new 

variances.   

Pam said that she understood that they preferred to not be close to the existing neighbor and the road.  But they 

could better meet setbacks if they placed the home closer to the midpoint of the lots.  There is more room between 

the road and the lake there.  For her 55 ft from the lake is a big deal.  They may be diligent in their care of the 

property, but what about the next owners? 

The Sieverts asked if it would have made a difference if the garage were not attached to the house.  Pam said that 

she couldn’t speak to that.  The bottom line was that the proposed home was too close to the lake.   

Nate said that he also thought it was too close to the lake.  He thought a variance from the road would be more 

appropriate than one from the lake.   

Blane said that the CLUP emphasizes the rural nature of the Township.  Removing the cabin to build a home on 

the property does not increase the density of the area or result in a net gain in runoff.  He agreed that a slightly 

smaller home that was situated further from the lake would be more in keeping with the CLUP.   

Julie asked specifically what size house would be acceptable.   

Liz said that each variance request was unique and it was impossible to say. 



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 7 of 12 

Butch pointed out that the house next door has three stories.  All they requested was a loft.   

Butch asked if they could rehabilitate the cabin and add onto it by 25% without a variance.  Liz said they could.   

Old Business  

None. 

Nate said that AnDrew Zurcher reached out to him with some concerns.  He seemed to be confused about the 

denial of his short-term rental.  Nate told him to call Liz.  Liz said that a letter was sent to AnDrew stating that he 

is still not in compliance and needs to submit a proper stormwater management plan and remove any listings for 

his rental.  He claimed that he got a permit for the rental, but when Liz asked him for a copy, it was just a receipt 

from the clerk’s office showing he submitted the application.  She said that he is getting requests from three 

different agencies, the Township, the DNR, and the MPCA, so that may result in some confusion.   

Director’s Report 

None.   

Concerns from the Audience 

None.  

This was Blane’s last meeting.  Commission members expressed their appreciation for his work and a break was 

taken for treats.   

The meeting was reconvened to approve the decision and findings of fact document for the Sievert hearing.  The 

meeting adjourned at 9:05.  

 

Attachments:  

Letter from Bri Speldrich, DNR 

Letter from Rebecca Norine, neighbor 

  



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 8 of 12 

 



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 9 of 12 

 



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 10 of 12 

 

  



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 11 of 12 

 

 



Planning Commission, Meeting Minutes, May 23, 2024 

Page 12 of 12 

 


